

1



Name of Meeting Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Date of Meeting 29th January 2024

> Agenda item: 7.3e

Procedure Approval Report

Section 1 - Procedure Information

Procedure Title	Purchasing Card Procedure and Guidance
Policy Lead	Jane Matthews, Head of Financial
	Reporting and Control
Lead Executive	Huw George, Deputy Chief Executive and
	Executive Director of Operations and
	Finance
PHW / All Wales?	PHW
Date of last Review	July 2022
Is the current procedure within	Yes, but this process formalises the
review date?	guidance document into a Financial
	Procedure
Approving Body /Group	Audit and Corporate Governance
	Committee
Version Number	1.0
Section 2: Recommendation	

That the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

- **Considers** the new Procedure and the Equalities Impact Assessment
- Note that the Leadership Team endorsed the Procedure to the Committee on the 23rd January 2024
- **Approve** the Purchasing Card Procedure and Guidance

Date: 23 rd January 202	4 Version: 1.0	Page: 1 of 4

Section	3 – Details of the Review:
Background:	
Reason for review	An internal review of Purchasing Card expenditure took place during 2023 to check compliance against the guidance in place. A number of amendments were required to the guidance to strengthen the financial controls around purchasing card expenditure. The Finance Division has had a Purchasing Card Guidance in place for a number of years, however, it had not previously been formalised as a Finance Procedure. Completing this process will ensure the procedure undergoes regular review through the relevant governance channels.
Description/Assessment	The Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs) detail the financial responsibilities, policies and procedures adopted by Public Health Wales NHS Trust (PHW). The SFIs do not provide detailed procedural advice and should be read in conjunction with the detailed departmental and Financial Control Procedure (FCP) notes. This procedure ensures that the Trust has clear guidance in place for the issuing, usage and governance of Purchasing Card Scheme is to reduce paperwork and administration time involved in the ordering and invoicing process for low value, ad hoc goods and services not covered by any purchasing agreements or contracts.
Consultation	
Has this Policy / Procedure	Yes

Has this Policy / Procedure	Yes
been through the appropriate	
28 day consultation process?	
Date range of consultation:	15/12/2023 - 12/01/2024
Please provide details of any	No feedback received. No changes.
feedback received and outline	
what changes if any were	
made to the document as a	
result:	

Version: 1.0	Page: 2 of 4
	Version: 1.0



Had this policy / procedure been considered by any other groups? If so, please provide detail of	Yes During the 28 day consultation process, NWSSP
any comments / feedback or amendments made to the documents as a result of this	 Juring the 28 day consultation process, NWSSP Internal Audit team wrapped up their audit on 'Use of Procurement Cards'. A number of recommendations were made in the audit report. The procedure was updated to reflect the recommendations. These comprised of: Including a link to the latest NHS Terms and Conditions of Service Handbook for guidance on travel and subsistence. Further clarification on the responsibilities of the cardholder and their line manager in relation to notifying Finance and destroying the card when an employee leaves the Trust. Addition of Monthly Transaction Limit and Single Transaction Limit to the Cardholder Agreement template. Clarification that changes to limits must be approved by the Head of Financial Reporting and Control. A sentence added to confirm that purchases through personal accounts via 'cashback websites' are not allowed.
(Add detail)	The Leadership Team considered the procedure and made suggestions related to future improvement works (the move from manual forms to digital means such as Microsoft Forms, Sharepoint and Power automate). These suggestions were taken onboard and it was noted that the Directorate would look to plan this into their work schedule for 2024/25.
	The Leadership Team endorsed the procedure to the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee on the 23 rd January 2024.
Section 4: Impact Assessment	S
Equality and Health Impact Assessment	An Equality and Health Impact Assessment has been completed and is included as an appendix to this paper. No issues were identified in the assessment.
Welsh Language Impact	The Policy / Procedure will be translated to welsh and available on the internet bilingually.

Version: 1.0	Page: 3 of 4
	Version: 1.0



Risk and Assurance	This procedure has no relevance to the Strategic Risk Register, Corporate Risk Register (CRR) and / or the Directorate Risk Register.
Health and Care Standards	This Policy / Procedure supports and/or takes into account the <u>Health and Care Standards for</u> <u>NHS Wales Quality Themes</u> Theme 7 - Staff and Resources Governance, Leadership and Accountability Choose an item.
Financial implications	There are no financial implications to this procedure being adopted.
People implications	There is no potential impact on workforce or staff survey plans as a result of this new procedure being adopted.
Socio Economic Duty	There are no implications to the duty.

5 - Implementation

Implementation plan (with timescales)		
Next steps	Timescale	Responsible officer(s)
Approval through Audit and Corporate	29 January	Jane Matthews
Governance Committee	2024	
Publishing of Procedure on Finance SharePoint	February	Jane Matthews
pages	2024	
Promotion of document via Finance Business	February	Jane Matthews
Partner networks and directly to all Purchasing	2024	
Card Holders across the Trust.		

6. Dissemination

The primary source for dissemination of this Stores Financial Control Procedure within the organisation will be via the internet site.

Date: 23 rd January 2024	Version: 1.0	Page: 4 of 4



PURCHASING CARD PROCEDURE AND GUIDANCE

Introduction and Aim

The Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs) detail the financial responsibilities, policies and procedures adopted by Public Health Wales NHS Trust (PHW). The SFIs do not provide detailed procedural advice and should be read in conjunction with the detailed departmental and Financial Control Procedure (FCP) notes.

This procedure ensures that the Trust has clear guidance in place for the issuing, usage and governance of Purchasing Cards.

The aim of the Purchasing Card Scheme is to reduce paperwork and administration time involved in the ordering and invoicing process for low value, ad hoc goods and services not covered by any purchasing agreements or contracts.

Linked Policies, Procedures and Written Control Documents All corporate policies and procedures are available on the Public Health Wales website

Other written control documents which have been identified to have interdependencies with this procedure and should therefore be read in conjunction with, include;

- Standing Financial Instructions
- <u>Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy</u>
- <u>NHS Wales Purchasing Compliance Guide</u>
- <u>All Wales Procure to Pay e-Manual</u>

Scope

This procedure is Trust wide and applies to Purchasing Cardholders and Finance Division staff who advise on the use of purchasing cards.

Equality and Health Impact Assessment	Had an EHIA been completed? Yes
Approved by	Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
Approval Date	TBC

Review Date	ТВС
Date of Publication:	TBC
Accountable	Huw George, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive
Executive	Director for Operations and Finance
Director/Director	
Author	Jane Matthews, Head of Financial Reporting and Control

Disclaimer

If the review date of this document has passed please ensure that the version you are using is the most up to date either by contacting the document author or the <u>Board Business Unit.</u>

This is a controlled document, the master copy is retained by the Board Business Unit

Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the internet is the master copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. This document should **not** be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the <u>internet</u>.

Summary of reviews/amendments					
Version number	Date of Review	Date of Approval	Date published	Summary of Amendments	
1.0	August – December 2023	TBC	TBC	A guidance document has existed since 2013, however, this is the first time the guidance has been formalised into a financial procedure.	
				Key amendments since the last guidance document include:	
				Use of relevant corporate policy/procedure template and creation of Equality and Health Impact Assessment.	
				Reference to fraud prevention included.	
				Updated links to linked procedures included.	
				 List of exemptions extended to include staff gifts, capital expenditure and catering for staff. 	
				 Reference to new quarterly data review introduced in 2023 included. 	
				 'Cardholder Specific Details' form removed from appendices as this is no longer used in the process. 	
				 Addition of Monthly Transaction Limit and Single Transaction Limit to the Cardholder Agreement template 	

Contents

1	Introduction	5
2	Overview of the Purchasing Card Process	5
3	Card Housekeeping	6
	Purchasing Card Application	
5	Transaction Approvals and Statements	9
6	Limits	10
7	Transactions	10
8	Exceptions – Items and Commodities not to be Purchased	11
9	Monthly Review Process	. 122
10	Raising Transactions and Placing Orders	12
11	Summary	. 144

Appendices

1	Summary of Purchasing Card Process	15
	Cardholder Agreement	
	Lost/Stolen Card Incident Report	
	Purchasing Card Transaction Request Form	
	Purchasing Card Monthly Account	

1 Introduction

The main objective of the Purchasing Card Scheme (the 'scheme') is to reduce paperwork and administration time involved in the ordering and invoicing process for low value, ad hoc goods and services not covered by any purchasing agreements or contracts.

This procedure provides guidance for the issuing, usage and governance of the Purchasing Card (the 'card').

Each cardholder is issued with a copy of this document and their individual spending limits under which they can use their card. All purchases should be made in accordance with these procedures and Public Health Wales NHS Trust Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions.

The cardholder may only use the card for business purposes and may under no circumstances use the card for private transactions. If the cardholder requires any further clarification or information regarding this, they should contact the Purchasing Card Administrator (the 'administrator') in the first instance.

2 Overview of the Purchasing Card Process

New Cardholders must complete a Barclaycard Cardholder Application form. These are available from the Purchasing Card Administrator. This form will make a permanent record of the card and user details of each card issued.

Certain types of goods or services will require that specific approved suppliers are used and normal Procurement policies and procedures should be followed. The Procurement Department will provide further details on request. Alternatively, a link to the All Wales Procure to Pay e-Manual can be found on the first page of this procedure.

The **<u>cardholder only</u>** will conduct the card transaction. This can be over the telephone, on a face-to-face basis, via the Internet (using a secure website and ensuring the card number is not included in any e-mail message/correspondence) and by postal booking forms or subscription requests.

N.B. For data protection, fraud prevention purposes and purchasing card security measures, card details must not be

stored or saved on any computer or internet site, for example, PayPal or Amazon.

Within 4 working days of the transaction, the card issuing bank will pay the supplier.

Monthly statements from Barclaycard Banking Services are received by the Trust, which provide an overall summary and also individual statements detailing the transactions that have been made by each cardholder.

3 Card Housekeeping

3.1 Purchasing Card Scheme

The scheme is held in the name of Public Health Wales NHS Trust and will be maintained and administered by a nominated authority of Public Health Wales Trust. The nominated authority will be the Purchasing Card Administrator.

3.2 Purchasing Card Administrator

The nominated Purchasing Card Administrator (the 'administrator') is the <u>Finance Support Accountant</u>. Queries and monthly returns should be directed to the administrator. Other members of the Finance Division have administrator access if the nominated Purchasing Card Administrator is unavailable.

3.3 Purchasing Card Amendments

The cardholder must inform the administrator if for any reason the cardholder's name or other details need amending. The obsolete card should be cut in half across the magnetic strip and then destroyed.

3.4 Purchasing Card Renewals

When the card reaches the expiry date, a replacement card should be received approximately 14 days prior to the renewal date. Non receipt should be advised immediately to the administrator.

3.5 Security of the Purchasing Card

The card issued to the cardholder is to be used by the cardholder only and should not be used by any other individual. The security of the card is the responsibility of the cardholder who must ensure that it is retained in a secure location and that the card number is not revealed to any unauthorised person(s). The card must be used for business purposes only and must not be used for personal use in any circumstances. If in the unlikely event of the card being used for personal use in error, the administrator must be informed immediately and the appropriate action will be taken (e.g., full investigation, recovery of money and any necessary disciplinary action instigated).

On receipt of the card, the cardholder and line manager/budget holder are required to sign a 'Cardholder Agreement Form' to confirm that the cardholder understands and consents to the card procedures detailed herein. A copy of the Cardholder Agreement Form can be found at Appendix 3.

3.6 Lost/Stolen Cards

If the card is lost or stolen, the issuing bank Barclaycard must be advised immediately by telephone on the Barclaycard 24-hour customer service helpline.

Telephone number: 0870 0101 152

The Barclaycard card lost/stolen card incident report must be completed, and a copy forwarded to the administrator for review and action accordingly. A copy of the Lost/Stolen Incident Report form can be found at Appendix 4.

3.7 Job Change/Department Change

Upon notice of a change of job and/or departmental change, the cardholder must inform the administrator as soon as possible. If there is a requirement for the new role and/or department to have a purchasing card, the cardholder can retain their current procurement card. A new cardholder agreement should be completed and approved by the new line manager. If there is no requirement for the new role and/or department to have a purchasing card, the 'Leaving Employment' process noted below in section 3.8 should be followed.

3.8 Leaving Employment

When a cardholder notifies their line manager that they will leave employment with the Trust, the line manager must notify the Administrator as soon as possible so arrangements can be made to close the cardholder's account. The cardholder must return the card to the administrator. The administrator will destroy the card by cutting it through the magnetic strip and through the chip.

3.9 Cardholder Liability/Credit Status

Whilst the card is embossed with the cardholder's name; the account, and therefore the financial liability, is in the name of Public Health Wales NHS Trust. Consequently, there is no impact on the cardholder's personal credit status.

However, it is important to note that the cardholder remains personally responsible that the use of the card is in accordance with these Purchasing Card Guidance and Procedures. Any fraudulent use of the card may ultimately lead to disciplinary proceedings.

3.10 Training and Guidance

A pre-condition for the use of the card is that the cardholder should have received appropriate guidance for using the card (with the cardholder's line manager/budget holder in attendance if required). This training could be given virtually, and the purpose is to introduce the cardholder to the scheme by explaining the procedure and guidelines. The cardholder must complete the Cardholder Agreement form (Appendix 2) which includes agreeing that they understand the procedures and have read the guidelines.

4 Purchasing Card Application

Upon receipt of a request by the departmental manager for a card, a decision must be made as to who will be the cardholder within the department.

A request from the Head of Department/Departmental Manager will be made to the administrator. A cardholder application form will be sent to the individual with an explanatory memorandum attached, these will include:

- a) Cardholders application forms –Barclaycard form to be completed by the cardholder.
- b) Purchasing Card Guidance and Procedures including appendices.

Completed forms must be returned to the Card Administrator via email.

The authorised forms will be sent to the card issuing bank. The bank will despatch the card and Personal Identification Number (PIN) under separate cover directly to Finance.

The Administrator will send the card and PIN separately to the cardholder. The cardholder and line manager/budget holder must sign and return the Cardholder Agreement form (Appendix 2) acknowledging receipt and agreeing to comply with the use of the cards terms and conditions.

5 Transaction Approvals and Statements

Once the application process is complete and the card and PIN have been issued and the Cardholder Agreement has been duly authorised, the new cardholder can commence using the card.

All purchases must be in accordance with these procedures and guidelines as issued at the time of the application.

Travel and subsistence purchases should be made in accordance with the <u>Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions</u> for reimbursement of Travel and Subsistence.

If booking and purchasing overseas travel, please ensure the <u>overseas travel form</u> is completed and approved, prior to booking.

Before making any purchases, a 'Purchasing Card Transaction Request Form' (copy of which can be found at Appendix 4) must be completed and authorised by the relevant line manager/budget holder (or delegated person as detailed in the Standing Financial Instructions). All Purchasing Card Transaction Request forms must be retained locally for audit purposes.

At the end of every month a 'Purchasing Card Monthly Account' form (see Appendix 5) must be completed. The transactions on this statement will be correctly coded and reconciled to the transaction request forms for the relevant month. Copies of the Purchasing Card Monthly Account must be returned to the Administrator as close to the statement date (21st of month) as possible.

Digital invoices and receipts (or scanned copies where physical documents are received) for each transaction should be retained by the cardholder for further inspection when requested during routine scheme audits and/or any individual transaction queries.

Every month the Finance Support Accountant will reconcile each cardholder's monthly account to the credit card statement received from the bank.

Should any queries or anomalies arise, these must be resolved by the Finance Support Accountant and the cardholder in an accurate and timely manner. Any irregularities will be reported to the Card Administrator.

6 Limits

6.1 Monthly Credit Limit

A monthly credit limit has been set for each cardholder and is detailed in the Cardholder Application Form. If this limit is found to be insufficient for their purchasing needs, the cardholder's line manager/budget holder should contact the administrator to discuss any revision to the limits.

6.2 Transaction Limit

The Trust has an agreed maximum transaction limit for each card. The current limits for individual transactions will be detailed in the Cardholder Application Form and will be included on the Trust Cardholder Agreement. The card should not be used for purchases in excess of this limit. Attempting to purchase in excess of this limit will be met with a decline when authorisation is sought for the transaction. The total transaction limit is inclusive of any VAT, carriage charges, etc. Transactions cannot be split in order to remain within the maximum transaction limits. Expenditure limits can be amended. Approval must be sought from both the cardholder's line manager/relevant budget holder and the Head of Financial Reporting and Control before being actioned. A request must be sent to the Administrator, giving at least one month's notice.

7 Transactions

The card can potentially be used at any supplier outlet displaying the Visa/MasterCard logo, provided the card has been set with the appropriate merchant categories.

Suppliers that accept the card are categorised into three levels.

Level 1 – Suppliers who provide total cost (including VAT) of the transaction only.

Level 2 – Suppliers who provide a summary description as well as details of the VAT, gross and net costs of the transaction.

Level 3 – Suppliers who provide the same as Level 2 and also line item detail for the transaction(s). This gives as much detail of each transaction as normally provided with an invoice and would show the breakdown of an order into individual items.

Using the card with suppliers that are Level 2/3 compliant means that the supplier can accept a customer reference (information provided by the cardholder at the time of the order e.g. purchase order number) and capture the transaction's VAT details. This will then appear on the cardholder transaction report/statement. When using level 2 and 3 suppliers, the customer reference must be quoted at all times at the point of sale (when appropriate).

8 Exceptions – Items and Commodities not to be Purchased

The purchasing card should never be used to circumvent Procurement processes. The following items/commodities must **not** be purchased using the card:

- Automotive fuel
- Purchases from restaurants and bars (with exception retirement process)
- Cash
- Goods available from Welsh Health Supplies, Central Stores in Bridgend
- Mobile phones
- Items covered by Purchasing Agreements or Contracts (for example; stationery, electrical supplies, IT equipment, office supplies).
- Regularly used items or services
- Items considered to be capital (for example some IT purchases)
- Staff gifts (with exception of those under the retirement process)
- Refreshments/catering for staff

In addition to the above items which should not be purchased, cardholders should not make online purchases through personal accounts via 'cashback websites' (for example, Quidco).

It must be noted that purchases using the card are subject to the same procedures that control other Trust purchases. In particular the purchase of any medical, electrical or IT equipment must be approved in the normal manner and in accordance with Trust procedures. The cardholder must pass the information to the relevant department personnel i.e. Estates & Facilities, Infection Control, Digital Services, etc.

9 Monthly Review Process

The Finance Division will undertake a monthly review of all transactions to ensure compliance with the guidelines. Cardholders will be contacted if there are queries on any items for further explanations, and these will be regularly reported to the Director of Finance. Further investigations will be undertaken if necessary. Quarterly data is reviewed by the Finance Business Partners and reported to the relevant Directorates.

10 Raising Transactions and Placing Orders

The cardholder training will have covered all the stages that the cardholder must take each time that a transaction is raised. In brief the requirements are as follows:

The cardholder <u>personally</u> needs to place the order. This can be carried out in the following ways:

- 1. Ordering the goods/service by telephone and quoting the card number. Telephone orders should be delivered to a site address and not to the cardholder's private address.
- 2. Ordering by mail, where an application form can be completed with details of the card payment.
- 3. Personally visiting the supplier's premises and signing for goods.
- 4. Placing an order to a supplier's secure website via the Internet.

N.B. For data protection purposes and purchasing card fraud prevention measures, card details must not be stored or saved on any computer or internet site, for example, PayPal or Amazon.

In all instances the cardholder must inform the supplier of:

- The full card number and date of expiry
- The full name of the cardholder (as shown on the card)
- The Trusts full name

• The Card Verification Value (CVV) Code

N.B. for security reasons, in NO circumstances should the cardholder release the PIN to any suppliers except during face to face transaction entry order also ensuring the PIN is not disclosed. When documentation is used for ordering, the cardholder should not leave paperwork around displaying the card number.

Ordering by Mail/Telephone/Internet

When undertaking transactions by mail, telephone ordering or over the internet, the cardholder may be asked to quote the last three digits of the number printed within the signature strip on the reverse of your card (CVV number). The cardholder should not be asked for, nor reveal the PIN, in any circumstances.

The cardholder will also need to quote:

- The full delivery address
- A clear description of the goods required

Card Declined

If a transaction is declined, please refer to the administrator. For example, some potential causes maybe – exceeding monthly card limit, exceeding individual transaction limit or using a supplier that is within a category disallowed by the Trust.

Rejection of Goods/Goods Incorrect

If the goods are rejected for any reason, the cardholder must ensure that the supplier is informed directly, as it is the supplier who will arrange a credit to the Purchasing Card account. The credit will appear on the cardholder's record of transactions and it is the responsibility of the cardholder to carry out regular checks to ensure the credit is received correctly.

If the cardholder is unable to reach a mutual agreement with the supplier, the cardholder must contact the administrator immediately.

Incorrect Amount Billed

Please see "Transaction Approval and Statement" above for procedures which will be followed.

Billed but Goods not Received

If the cardholder is billed for purchases that have not been received, the cardholder should contact the supplier to ensure that the goods have been despatched. It is the issuing bank and the Purchasing Card's regulations that transactions are not processed until the goods are despatched. The administrator must be informed immediately if this directive has been breached.

11 Summary

The Purchasing Card Scheme is designed to be simple and easy to use whilst providing the goods and services required to perform the cardholder's job role in an efficient manner. It should also provide assurance that appropriate controls are continually maintained which would ensure the ongoing success of the scheme.

The cardholder is requested to exercise good judgement and to act responsibly when using the card to ensure that value for money is obtained. The card is issued in the cardholder's personal name and all activity will be assumed to have been incurred by the named cardholder.

To ensure the schemes continued success, random audits will be conducted for both card activity and retention of transaction reports, receipts and invoices. Suspension of the card or disciplinary procedures would be invoked for any improper use of the card facility.

The monitoring and review of this procedure is the responsibility of the Head of Financial Reporting and Control in the Financial Accounts team. Reviews will be undertaken every 3 years, or when changes are identified prior to the required review date.

APPENDIX 1

PUBLIC HEALTH WALES NHS TRUST SUMMARY OF PURCHASING CARD PROCESS

- 1. Each request for a card must be made to the administrator by the line manager in the first instance.
- 2. The Purchasing Card Scheme guidance and procedure along with the relevant Barclaycard Application forms will be sent to the requesting officer.
- 3. The Purchasing Card Procedure and Guidance must be read and the Barclaycard Cardholder Application Form must be completed and signed by the appropriate line manager and returned to the administrator.
- 4. The administrator will return the completed application forms to the issuing bank when authorised.
- 5. The issuing bank will send the card and Personal Identification Number (PIN) to the Purchasing Card Administrator on acceptance. The administrator will register the card details and forward to the cardholder. The issuing bank will send the PIN under separate cover to the Finance Division.
- 6. On receipt of the card by the cardholder, Appendix 2 (Cardholder Agreement) must be duly completed by the cardholder and line manager and returned to the administrator prior to any use of the card.
- 7. For each card transaction, Appendix 4 (Purchasing Card Transaction Request Form) must be completed and authorised accordingly.
- 8. By the 21st of the following month, Appendix 5 (Purchasing Card Monthly Account) must be completed and sent to the <u>Finance Support Accountant</u>.
- Public Health Wales NHS Trust will receive the Purchasing Card Statement from the issuing bank by the 21st of the month and payment will be made on this date.
- 10. The Financial Support Accountant will reconcile all transactions from the Purchasing Card Monthly Accounts to

the statement from each cardholder and resolve any queries in a timely manner.

11. If the Purchasing Card becomes lost or stolen, please contact Barclaycard 24 hour customer service helpline immediately. The Lost/Stolen Incident Report (Appendix 3) must be completed and countersigned by the line manager/budget holder and then sent to the card administrator **APPENDIX 2**

PUBLIC HEALTH WALES NHS TRUST

CARDHOLDER AGREEMENT

I acknowledge receipt of NHS Purchasing Card Number _____ Monthly expenditure limit \pounds _____ Single transaction limit \pounds _____

As a cardholder I agree to comply with the following terms and conditions regarding my use of the Purchasing Card (the 'card').

- a. I have received and understood that I am being entrusted with a card and will be making financial commitments on behalf of Public Health Wales NHS Trust. Where stipulated I will be using designated suppliers as identified by the Procurement Department.
- b. I understand that Public Health Wales NHS Trust is liable to the card provider for all the charges made on the card.
- c. I agree to use this card for Public Health Wales NHS Trust business purchases only and agree not to charge personal purchases. I understand that the Trust will audit the use of this card and report and take appropriate action on any discrepancies.
- d. I will follow the established procedures for the use of the card. Failure to do so may result in either revocation of my privileges and/or any other disciplinary action, including termination of employment.
- e. I have been given a copy of the Purchasing Card Guidance and Procedure document and understand the requirements for the use of the card including the exceptions listed in the procedure.
- f. I agree to return the card immediately upon request or upon termination of employment (including retirement). Should there be any organisational change, which cause my purchasing requirements to change, I agree to return my card and arrange for a replacement, if appropriate.
- g. If the card is lost or stolen I agree to notify Barclaycard immediately and the Purchasing Card Administrator as soon as possible thereafter.

	Cardholder Signature:
:	Print Name:
:	Date:
:	Line Manager Signature:

Print Name:	
Date:	
Purchasing Card Administrator Signature:	
Print Name:	
Date:	

APPENDIX 3

PUBLIC HEALTH WALES NHS TRUST

LOST/STOLEN CARD INCIDENT REPORT

CARD NUMBER	
CARDHOLDER NAME	
CARDHOLDER DEPT	
DATE OF INCIDENT	
INCIDENT DETAILS	
ACTION TAKEN	
To be completed by cardholder:	
To be completed by administrator	-
Cardholder Indemnity	
I certify that the above desc	ribes an accurate reflection of the incident

I certify that the above describes an accurate reflection of the incident that has occurred.

I confirm that I have undertaken all the necessary actions to mitigate the incident actually occurring.

Cardholder Signature:	
Date:	
Line Manager/Budget	
Holder Signature:	
Date:	
Purchasing Card	
Administrator Signature:	
Date:	

APPENDIX 4 PUBLIC HEALTH WALES NHS TRUST

PURCHASING CARD TRANSACTION REQUEST FORM

REFERENCE NUMBER:					
DATE OF REQUEST:					
DIRECTORATE/DIVISION:					
REQUESTED BY:					
ITEM(S) REQUESTED: (if rail travel – please give details below)					
SUPPLIER DETAILS:					
RAIL TICKET DETAILS	(if reauir	ed):			
		-			
Passenger:		D	ate of travel:		
From:		Τα):		
Ticket type: Standard/day	return/ope	n return			
Out		<u>R</u>	eturn		
From:		F	om:		
То:		Т	o:		
Date:		Date:			
Train times:		Т	ain times:		
TOTAL COST:	£	I			
COST CENTRE:		S	UBJECTIVE:		
Budget Holder Signature:		Print Name:		Date:	
Card Holder Signature:		Print Name:		Date:	
DATE CHARGED TO CAI	RD:			· ·	
Please ensure a	ll fields ai	Please ensure all fields are accurately completed.			

- For multiple purchases, please ensure a breakdown is provided in the narrative.
- All purchasing Card Transaction Request Forms MUST be signed by the budget holder before being accepted and processed by the Cardholder.

APPENDIX 5

PUBLIC HEALTH WALES NHS TRUST PUCHASING CARD MONTHLY ACCOUNT

CARD NUMBER		CARDHOLDER NAME		MONTH ENDED
DATE	SUPPLIER/NARRATIVE (please include destination from/to if booking travel)	COST CENTRE	SUBJECTIVE	AMOUNT (£)
			TOTAL	£ -

			Please send form to:
			FAO. Daniel Brown, Finance Support Accountant
Authorised Purchasing Card Transaction Request forms have been obtained for all above transactions			daniel.brown@wales.nhs.uk
Signed: Date:			



Template Equality & Health Impact Assessment for

Purchasing Card Procedure and Guidance

Part 1

Please answer all questions:-

1.	For service change, provide the title of the Project Outline Document or Business Case and Reference Number	Purchasing Card Procedure and Guidance
2.	Name of Clinical Board / Corporate Directorate and title of lead member of staff, including contact details	Operations and Finance Directorate Huw George, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of Operations and Finance Email: Huw.George2@wales.nhs.uk
3.	Objectives of procedure	The procedure will ensure that the Trust has clear guidance in place for the issuing, usage and governance of Purchasing Cards.
4.	 Evidence and background information considered. For example population data staff and service users data, as applicable needs assessment 	All Health Boards and Trusts in Wales have similar procedures in place. Similar procedures from Health Boards have been reviewed in the process of updating this procedure to ensure some consistency.
	engagement and involvement findingsresearchgood practice guidelines	The requirements set out in the Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs) have been considered to ensure the detail in this procedure aligns with the SFIs.

	 participant knowledge list of stakeholders and how stakeholders have engaged in the development stages comments from those involved in the designing and development stages Population pyramids are available from Public Health Wales Observatory and the 'Shaping Our Future Wellbeing' Strategy provides an overview of health need. 	A significant piece of work was carried out in 2023 to review purchasing card expenditure across the Trust. The findings of this review have been fed into the process of updating this procedure to ensure guidance is more explicit in what instances and what type of expenditure purchasing cards can be used for. Comments have been sought from members of the Finance Division who are involved in administering Purchasing Cards.
5.	Who will be affected by the procedure Consider staff as well as the population that the project/change may affect to different degrees.	The procedure is to be used by the Finance Division and Purchasing Cardholders across Public Health Wales.

Part 2- Equality and Welsh language

6. EQIA / How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on people?

Questions in this section relate to the impact on people on the basis of their 'protected characteristics'.

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
 6.1 Age For most purposes, the main categories are: under 18; between 18 and 65; and over 65 	The procedure is to be used by all staff.	None required	
6.2 Persons with a	Positive – the procedure is	Public Health Wales does	
disability as defined in	to be used by all staff.	have provision for the	
the Equality Act 2010		production of documents	
Those with physical	Whilst the contents of the	that are accessible to	
impairments, learning disability, sensory loss or	procedure does not have a	persons with disabilities.	
impairment, mental health	negative impact on	Large print, Braille or	
conditions, long-term	persons with a disability,	audio versions could be	
	as with all written control	provided on request.	

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
medical conditions such as diabetes	documents there may be a negative impact due to the format of the control document that is available. Documents are published on the intranet in pdf format. Visual impairment – not all accessibility software accepts pdf format and therefore an alternative format may be required. <u>Learning disability – The</u> documents may also not be understood by those who have difficulty deciphering or reading the written word, for example, dyslexia. Therefore,	The Board Secretary/ Head of Corporate Governance is available to provide advice and assistance in applying the policy and procedure.	

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
	further explanation and support may be required.		
 6.3 People of different genders: Consider men, women, people undergoing gender reassignment NB Gender-reassignment is anyone who proposes to, starts, is going through or who has completed a process to change his or her gender with or without going through any medical procedures. Sometimes referred to as Trans or Transgender 	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	
6.4 People who are married or who have a civil partner.	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
6.5 Women who are expecting a baby, who are on a break from work after having a baby, or who are breastfeeding.	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	
6.6 People of a different race, nationality, colour, culture or ethnic origin including non-English speakers, gypsies/travellers, migrant workers	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	
6.7 People with a religion or belief or with no religion or belief.	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
The term `religion' includes a religious or philosophical belief			
 6.8 People who are attracted to other people of: the opposite sex (heterosexual); the same sex (lesbian or gay); both sexes (bisexual) 	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	
6.9 People according to their income related group: Consider people on low income, economically inactive, unemployed/workless, people who are unable to work due to ill-health	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	
6.10 People according to where they live:	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
Consider people living in areas known to exhibit poor economic and/or health indicators, people unable to access services and facilities			
6.11 Consider any other groups and risk factors relevant to this strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service	Positive – the procedure is to be used by all staff.	None Required	
6.12 Welsh Language			
service to ensure there a (please note these will cont	ations to be made during to re no adverse effects and inue to be reviewed to ensure	/or a positive or increase e Public Health Wales fulfils	d positive effect on: their duties to comply with
Opportunities for	ned within the Welsh Langua Whilst the contents of the	This procedure has been	
persons to use the Welsh language	procedure do not have a negative impact on persons with a disability, as with all written control	developed with due consideration of the Welsh Language Scheme. This procedure	

How will the strategy, policy, plan, procedure and/or service impact on:-	Potential positive and/or negative impacts (unintended consequences) Opportunities or gaps	Action taken by Directorate. Make reference to where the mitigation is included in the document, as appropriate This column is to be updated in future reviews	Recommendations for improvement/ mitigation/ identified gaps or opportunities
	documents there may be a negative impact as existing written control documents are not routinely available in Welsh language. The effects of the policy and procedure under consideration on the Welsh Language will need to be considered on a case by case basis. Specifically: (i) opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and (ii) treating the Welsh languages no less favourably than the English language.	may need to be reviewed in the event of Welsh Language Standards being introduced for Public Health Wales.	
Treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language	As above	As above	

Part 3 – Health

Questions in this section relate to the impact on the health and wellbeing outcomes of the population **and** specific population groups who could be more impacted than others by a policy/project/proposal.

The part of the assessment identifies;

- which specific groups in the population could be impacted more (inequalities)
- what those potential impacts could be across the wider determinants of health framework?
- Potential gaps, opportunities to maximise positive H&WB outcomes
- Recommendations/mitigation to be considered by the decision makers

7. Identification of specific population groups

Use the WHIASU Population Groups checklist as a reference to identify the population groups who could be more impacted than others by a policy/project/proposal. The check list can be found on the PHW Integrated EqHIA guidance pages (requires link to PHW Intranet pages for additional information and resources)

The groups listed have been identified as more susceptible to poorer health and wellbeing outcomes (health inequalities) and therefore it is important to consider them in a HIA assessment. In a HIA, the groups identified, as more sensitive to potential impacts will depend on the characteristics of the local population, the context, and the nature of the proposal itself.

7.1 Groups identified	Rational/explanation

Assessment

Complete the wider determinants framework table below providing rational/evidence where appropriate:

- 1. Consider how the proposal could impact on the population and specific population groups identified above (positive/negative) for each of the wider determinants (the bullets under each determinant are there as a guide)
- 2. Record any unintended consequences (negative impacts) and/or gaps identified
- 3. Record any positive impacts or missed opportunities to maximise positive health and wellbeing outcomes
- 4. identify and record mitigation/recommendations where appropriate

Please note you may find that not all determinants are relevant to the project/plan however recording N/A is not acceptable a rational or evidence should be explained/referenced

 Wider determinant for consideration 7.2 Lifestyles Diet/nutrition/breastfeeding Physical activity Use of alcohol, cigarettes, e-cigarettes Use of substances, non-prescribed drugs, abuse of prescription medication Social media use Sexual activity Risk-taking activity i.e. gambling, addictive behaviour 	Positive impacts or additional opportunities The procedure is an internal document intended to provide guidance to staff. Therefore, it does not have an impact on the health and wellbeing of the population or addressing inequalities in health.	Unintended consequences or gaps N/A	Population groups affected	Mitigation/recommendations
 7.3 Social and community influences on health Adverse childhood experiences Citizen power and influence Community cohesion, identity, local pride 	As above	As above		

Community resilience			
Domestic violence			
Family relationships			
Language, cultural and spirituality			
Neighbourliness			
 Social exclusion i.e. homelessness 			
 Parenting and infant attachment 			
Peer pressure			
Racism			
Sense of belonging			
Social isolation/loneliness			
Social capitol/support/networks			
Third sector & volunteering			
7.4 Mental Wellbeing	As above	As above	
Does this proposal support sense of			
control?			
Does it enable participation in			
community and economic life?			
Does it impact on emotional wellbeing			
and resilience?			
7.5 Living/ environmental conditions	As above	As above	
affecting health			
Air quality			
Attractiveness/access/availability/quality			
of area, green and blue space, natural			
space.Health & safety, community, individual,			
public/private space			
 Housing, quality/tenure/indoor 			
environment			
Light/noise/odours, pollution			
Quality & safety of play areas			
(formal/informal)			
Road safety			
Urban/rural built & natural environment			
Waste and recycling			
Water quality			
7.6 Economic conditions affecting	As above	As above	
health			

			1
Unemployment			
• Income, poverty (incl. food and fuel)			
Economic inactivity			
 Personal and household debt 			
 Type of employment i.e. 			
permanent/temp, full/part time			
Workplace conditions i.e. environment			
culture, H&S			
7.7 Access and quality of services	As above	As above	
Careers advice			
Education and training			
 Information technology, internet access, 			
digital services			
Leisure services			
 Medical and health services 			
 Other caring services i.e. social care; 			
Third Sector, youth services, child care			
 Public amenities i.e. village halls, 			
libraries, community hub			
 Shops and commercial services 			
Transport including parking, public			
transport, active travel			
	As above	As above	
7.8 Macro-economic, environmental	AS above	AS above	
and sustainability factors			
Biodiversity			
Climate change/carbon			
reduction/flooding/heatwave			
Cost of living i.e. food, rent, transport and			
house prices			
Economic development including trade			
Government policies i.e. Sustainable			
Development principle (integration;			
collaboration; involvement; long term thinking;			
and prevention)Gross Domestic Product			
Regeneration			

Stage 3 Summary of key findings and actions Please answer question 8.1 following the completion of the EHIA and complete the action plan

Key findings:	Actions (what is	Lead	
Impacts/gaps/opportunities	needed and who	Lead	
	needs to do) to		
	address the		
	identified		
	mitigation and		
	recommendations		
The contents of the procedure has no disproportionate impact on the grounds of race, gender, disability, age, sexual orientation, religious belief or Welsh language.			
The Procedure is applicable to all members of staff equally and is designed to assist Purchasing Cardholders and Finance Division staff in the governance, control and usage of purchasing cards.			
The Impact Assessment has found that, by introducing the revised policy and procedure, there may be a negative impact on individuals due to:			
Persons with a disability as defined in the Equality			
Act 2010			
Whilst the contents of the procedure does not have a			
negative impact on persons with a disability, as with all			
written control documents there may be a negative impact			
due to the format of the control document that is			
available. Documents are published on the intranet in pdf			
format.			

Visual impairment – not all accessibility software accepts pdf format and therefore an alternative format may be required.

<u>Learning disability</u> - The documents may also not be understood by those who have difficulty deciphering or reading the written word, for example, dyslexia. Therefore further explanation and support may be required.

People who communicate using the Welsh language in terms of correspondence, information leaflets, or service plans and design. Existing documents have not been routinely translated into Welsh.

The effects of the procedure under consideration on the Welsh Language will need to be considered on a case by case basis. Specifically: (i) opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and (ii) treating the Welsh languages no less favourably than the English language.

Alternatively, if appropriate, please explain the steps taken to consult with and consider the differential impact of the changes on the various protected characteristic groups (part 2) or any specific identified population groups (part 3).